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To the Members of Argon Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

'Opiﬁion :

We have audited the financial statements of Argon Hotels Private Limited (the “Company”) which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and cther explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the acceunting principtes generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

 Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifor's
Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

- Key Audit 'M_é.tiers '

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaf judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financia! statements as a whole, and in forming our cpinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

See Note 26 to financial statements

- T say auvdit matier How the matier was sddressed in our audit

The Company Is principally engaged in the : Our audit procedures included:
business of owning hotels. It's rev : . . '
- 9 S ts_ ovenue i+ Tested the design, implementation and
comprises hotel revenue {including room . .
: operating effectiveness of ihe key controls of the .
revenue, food and beverage revenue and "
revenue recognition process.

revenue from recreation and other services). .
+ Tested the Company's revenue recognition

: The accounting policies for different revenue accounting policies are consistent with the
. streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial applicable accounting standards.
statements. . - . . :
* Using siatisticat sampling basis, tested the

revenue transactions recorded during the year
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Argon Hotels Private Limited

' Revenue is a key performance indicator of the (includihg year-end cut off testing) with the

Company and there is risk of averstatement of underlying documents such as invoices, bank
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure to collections and other relevant documents, as
achieve targets and earnings expectations. applicable.

Tested the journal entries relating to revenue !
recognised during the year based on specified '
risk-based criteria, to identify unusual or
irregular items.

Considering the above, we have identified - :
. revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

* Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating
to the revenue recognition made in the
standalone financial statements in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

| Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5} of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs. loss and other comprenensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, inciuding the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
nf the assets nf the Campany and frr preventing and detecting frands and athar irragilarities; salectinn
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiat controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with $As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financiai statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissicns, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Argon Hotels Private Limited

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Uinder Section 143(3)({i} of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such conirols.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's abiiity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor's repart. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the ptanned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral
that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefare
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report uniess law or regulation precludes
pubiic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should nct be communicated in cur report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

i_ Réport: art Other L.egaf and Regulatory Reéuifémenﬁ

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appiicable.

2 A As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the following:

{i) the back-up of accounting softwares used for maintaining general ledger, food & beverage
revenue records, payroll records and procure to pay records which forms part of the 'books of
account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode' have not been kept on servers

physically located in India on a daily basis; and

(it} for the matters stated in the paragraph 2B({f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

c. The halance sheet, the statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive incame), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.
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d.

independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Argon Hotels Private Limited

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as an 17 Aprif 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b} of the Act and
paragraph 28(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors}
Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financiai controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such centrols, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”,

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
pesition in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d {i} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

{1

the Note 45 (v) to the financiai statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company te or in any other persen(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Uitimate Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or
the iike on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, fo the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 45 (v} to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whethsr recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall dircctly or indircetly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based an the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonabie and appropriate

e.

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Caompany has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for alf relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

in the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with the audit trail
requirements in the respective independent auditor's reports of service organisations available
for part of the year and in the absence of the independent auditor's reports of service
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Independent Auditor’'s Report {Continued)
Argon Hotels Private Limited

organisations for the balance period, for accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of
account refating to general ledger, food and beverage revenue, payroll and procure to pay
process, which are operated by third-party software service providers, we are unabie to comment
whether audit trail feature for the said softwares was enabled and operated throughout the year
fer all relevant transactions, recorded in the respective softwares.

ii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software used far maintaining the books of account
relating to revenue process.

iii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabied for the accounting software
used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger.

Further, for the pericds where audit trail (edit iog) facility was enabled and operated for the
respective accounting softwares, we did not come across any instance of the audit trait feature
being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(18) of the Act which are required to be commented upon

by us.
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248WMWW-100022

!&i@hwl i\j&lﬂ&t,

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.. 508605
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24508605BKGUMM 1623
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements

of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

{7} (&) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

8
(i) (b}

{c}

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of aur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a reguiar programme of physical verification
of its Praperty. Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a pericd of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
praperty, plant and equipment were verified during the year. in our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in the
financial staternents are not held in the name of the Company, details of which are as foilows:

I Description Gross Held in the Whether Period Reason for
of property carrying name of promoter, held- not being
value (Rs. director or indicate held in the
in their range, name of the
millions) relative or where Company.
employee appropriat | Also indicate
e if in dispute
Freehold land 218.00 | Premier Inn No October Refer Nate 48
at Survey India Private ; 2008 to the
No.13/1A2A1 Limited Financial
1/2 and pans Statements.
of Survey
No.1311 i
P AZANMT,
Mundhwa -
Kharadi Rd,
Thite  Nagar,
Kharadi, Pune,
Maharashtra
411014
i Freehold land 126.00 | Premier Inn No . July 2011 Refer Note 48
at Survey No India Private ' to the
11/14 Flot B Limited Financial
C&E Anjuna, Statements.
Simvaddo Goa
403509
Right of use 123.73 | True Value No September | Refer Note 48
assets at 3-A1 Hotels India 2008 ta the
Kundanahalli Private Financiat
Main Road Limited Statements.
Mahadevpura,
opposite b
Campus,
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

{d)

(it} (a)

(iif)

(v)

{v)

(vi)

(vif) (2)

Whitefield,
Bengaluru,
Karnataka
560048 |'

The original titte deeds are under lien with the lenders for the loan facilities avaiied by the
Company. Therefore. we could not verify those title deeds. However, we have received
independent confirmation from the security trustee.

According to the infoermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
{including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class

of inventory.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capitai limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letters of such limits, there are no
requirements on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with the bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of ioans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, imited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(ii)(a} to 3{ii}(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanaticns given to us and an the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1} of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not appficable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According te the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounis deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Value added
tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities,
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Employees' State Insurance and Tax
Deducted at Source. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues an account of
Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respact of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Empioyees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess ar
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payabie, except as mentioned below:

T
Name of the Nature of the Amount | Period to Due date Date of
statute dues {Rs.in | which the payment
millions) amount
relates
The Provident 0.23 March 15 April | Not yet paid
Employees’ Fund ( 2019 2019
Provident additional
Funds and liability due to
MiscellaneusPr | supereme
ovisions court
Act, 1952 judgement)
Central Goods | Interest 2.01 July 2017 - | # Not yet paid
and Services Liability on March
Tax Act, 2017, | Goods and | 2022
State ' Services Tax
Goods and
Services Tax
Act, 2017, and
Integerated
Goods
and Services
Tax Act, 2017 |

# These amounts have falien due at various points of time during ealier years.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues reiating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees' State nsurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of Amount {Rs. | Amount paid Period to Forum
statute the dues in miflions) | under which the where
protest {Rs. amount dispute
in millions) relates is
' pending
Income Tax . Addition to 76.81 15.36 | AY 2017-18 Commiss
Act, 1961 the taxable ioner of
ncome income
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

{viii)

(ix} (a}

(c)

{d)

(e}

{0

) (a

b

{xi) (a)

(b

Name of the Nature of ‘ Amount (Rs. | Amount paid | Period to Forum
statute the dues in millions) | under which the where
protest (Rs. amount dispute
in millions) relates is
pending
Tax
i {Appeals)
1

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defauited in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

As at 31 March 2024, the Company also has interest free ioan amounting to Rs. 2,050.47
millions from SAMHI| Hotels Limited ("Hoiding Company”), repayble at the option of the
Company and accordingly classified as "other equity". As this loan is repayble at the option of
the Company, there has been no default in repayment thereof.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly. clause 3(ix){c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given te us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overali examination of the balance sheet of the company, we report that the company
has used funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs. 281.08 millions for long term
purposes,

The Company does not hoid any invesiment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures {as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix}(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initizl public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3{x)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fuily or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
300 (b) of the Order is not applicabie.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company er on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12} of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(c)
(xii)

(xtif}

(xv) (a)

)

(xv)

{xvi} {a)
{b)
{€)

{d)

{xvii)
(xviif}

{xix)

(xx)

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Cempany is not a Nidhi Cempany.
Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicabie 1o the
Company. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our apinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit of the Company for the period under audit is currently under progress. Hence,
the internal audit reports could not be considered by us.

In our gpinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-I14 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi}{b} of the Order is not appiicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accardingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Care Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3{xvi}(d} are not applicable.

During the current year, the Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 17.02 millions, however,
no cash losses were incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingiy, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financia! ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knaowledge of the Beard of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all fiabilities fafling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, wiil get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The reguirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicabie to the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx){a) and 3{x(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBS R & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/MW-100022

]Lﬁl’\ wt N {ua Gl .

Rahul Nayar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 28 May 2024 ICAl UDIN:24508605BKGUMM 1623
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
staterments under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

- Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Argon Hotels
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls
with reference to financiat statements as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essentiai
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™) and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section
of our report below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March

2024.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2024 financial statements of the Company,
and the material weakness do not affect our cpinion on the financial statements of the Company.

' Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the foliowing material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2024

The Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
Information Technology Conirols (GITCs) and automated Information Technology (IT) Application
Controls over the Company’s Opera application software were not operating effectively as at 31 March
2024. This could potentially result in understatement / overstatement of revenue from operations in the
Company's financial statements.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company’s annual or interim financial statements wil not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management's and Board of Directdré" Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internai control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities inciude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

| Auditor’s Responsibility ' i
y

Ouwr responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Page 12 of 14



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controfs with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference te financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Cur audit involves performing pracedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internai control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, inciuding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financiai statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

| Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financiat Statements -

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a precess designed fo
pravide reasanable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reperting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those poiicies and
pracedures that (1} pertain o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directars of the company:; and {3)
pravide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Refereﬁcg- to Financia Statements :

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of coltusion or improper management override of controis, materiai misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and net be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements o future periods are subject to the risk that the

internal financial conlrols with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of N

Page 13 of 14
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of Argon Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

ifoL\ wd Nﬁﬁd M,

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24508605BKGUMM1623
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Argon Hotels Private Limited

CIN - USSE0IDL2007PTCL61614

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(AN amounts in Rupees millions, unless othervise stated)

ASSETS

Noa-¢urrent assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-ol-use assets
Other intangible agsets
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Deferred 1ax assets (net)
Other tax assels
Other non-current assets
Total nan-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

E¢uity
Equity sharc capital
Cher equity

‘Fotal cquity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liablities
Borrowings
Lease hiabilities
Trade payables
- tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
- total outstanding dues ol creditors other than micro enterprises und small enterprises
Provisions
Total non- current liahilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabifities
Tradc pavables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs, and
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities

Taotal liabilities
TOFAL EQLITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes from Note | 1w Note 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For RSR & Co. LLP

Chartered dcconmtants
ICAL Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

12& hod N uj L

Rahul Navar
Fartrer
Membership No.: 308603

Plave: Gurugram
Date; 29 May 2024

As at

As at

Notes 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
3 1.161.08 1,232.37
3 89.94 144187
4 1,93 2.02
5 82.72 4382
'? - -
a 36.66 30.45
8 20.68 17.12
1,393.01 1.466.65
9 1.59 [.23
10 2017 32.61
11 24,72 123.13
12 0.75 0.56
13 19.85 2298
76.08 180.51
1,469.09 1.647.16
4 77.70 TG
15 {102.78) {162.435)
{25.08) {9L75)
16 903.62 1,077.04
17 210,92 25021
18
- 505
19 1.57 141
1,116,101 1,334.31
20 199.60 204.76
21 26,11 27.47
32
224 74
123,33 128.06
23 11.83 21.34
24 13.80 14,30
25 1.13 (.93
378.06 404.60
1.494.17 1,738.91
1.469.09 1,647.16

Argon Hotels Private Limited

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of ,.-*“w[jg
Lo \1

Direcior
DIN: 06813081

Place: CGurugranm
Date: 29 May 2024

Aya na Das

Direcior
DIN: 03363467

Place. Grurugram
Date: 29 May 2024




Argon Hotels Private Limited

CIN - LSS101DL2007PTCELS1614

Staternent of Profit and Loss for (he year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amonnts in Rupees millons. unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Nates 31 ¥arch 2024 31 March 2023
Continuing Operations
Income
Revenue from operations 26 62827 628.40
Other income 27 277 200,49
Total itcome 631.04 648,89
Expenses
Cost of matertals consumed 28 3169 3544
Employee benefits expense 29 105.03 100.52
Other expenses 32 331.21 319.47
Total expenses 467.93 455.43
Earnings from continuing nperations before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation, and tax 163.11 193.46
Finance costs 30 180016 171.533
Depreciation and amuortisation expense )| 85.03 82.99
265.19 261,52
Laoss lrom contineing operations before tax [162.08) (68.06)
Tax expense 7
Curreni tax -
Deferred tax - -
Loss for the year from confinning operations (102,08) (68.06)
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued aperations before exceplional items and tax 47 (32.43)
Cxceptional items from discontinued operations - gain 46 - 25250
Tax expense of discontinucd operations - -
Profit for the year from discentinued nperations - 220.07
{Loss)/Profit for the year (102,08) 152.01
Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Ttems that will ot be reclossified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement {loss)gain on defined benelit obligations 29 {0.24} 024
- Income tax relating to items mentioned above - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net nf tax {0.24) 0.24
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (102.32) 152,25
Loss per equity share from continuing operaiions 33
Nontinal value of share INR 10 [previous year INR 1}
Basic (INR) (13.14) (8.76)
Biluted (INR) £13.14) (8.76)
Earnings per equity share frem discontinued eperations 33
Nominal value of share INR 10 [pravious vear INR 10}
Basic (INR) - 2832
Dituted {INR) - 28.32
{Loss)/earnings per equity share 33
Nominal value of share INR 10 [previous year INR 10)]
Rasic (INR) (13 14) 19.56
Diluted (INR) (13.14) 19 56

The notes from Note 1 to Note 48 form an intcgral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Ditecturs of
Chartered Accountants q Argon Hotels the Limited

I‘_Cf’\l Firm Registration No - 101248W/W-100022 e
AW ;\m-ﬂ B, o Aﬁl w
Rahul Nayar - .0 Rajat Mchra
Partrer Direcear
Membership No - 308605 DIN: 06813081 DIN- 13563467
Piace: Gurugram Place. Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 May 2024 Drare: 29 May 2024

Date. 29 May 2024



Argon Hotels Private Limited

CIN - USS101DL2ZM7PTC161614

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
Al amounts in Rupees milfions. unless otherwise stated)

Ao Cash Rows (rom opersting activities

Loss for the year from continuing operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amorlisation expense
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on assct held for sale (refer note (b))
Gain on disposal of hotel on slump sale {refer note (a)}
Loss allowance for trade receivables
Provision no [onger required written back
Einarnce costs
Interest income
COVID-19 refated rent concessions
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange fluctuations (net}
Government grant
Gain on modification of financial liability
Unwinding of discount on security deposits
Operating profit before movement in assets and lLiabilities
{Increase)'decrease in inventories
Necrease/(increase) in trade receivables
(Increase)decrease in other financial assets
Decresse in other asscis
Deerease in trade payables
Diccrease in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
(Decreasc)increase in other financial liabililies
Cash generated from operitions
Tncome taxes pard
Net cash geacerated trom operating activities (A)

B. Cash Mtows from investing activities
Purchase of property, piant and equipment and other intangible assets
Expense on sale of property, plant and equipment (reler note (a) and note (b))
Proceeds from asset held for sale
Bank deposits made
Bank deposits matured
Inlerest received

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activitics
Proceeds from non-current birrowings
Equity component of interest free loan from holding company
Repayment of non-current horrowings
Proceeds from current borrowitips (net)
Lease pavments
Firnance costs paid

Net vash vsed in financing activities (C)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B~ ()
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginmng of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
8
e,

For the year ended
31 Maurch 2024

FFor the year ended
31 March 2023

(102.08) (68.06)
. 22007
8503 101.08

- (0.09)

. (22.75)

. (229 75)
236 3.69

. (4.75)
180.16 22166

(2.66) (2.65)

- (1.98)
0.33 116

. (017)

- (1430

(0.11) (0.10)
163.03 206.06
(0 36) 0.95
108 {5.50)
(0.61) 107
319 2842

(21.05) (112.13)
£0.50) (0.70)

0.12 (2.7
(3.31) 5.13
139.59 122.53
(6.21) (L1.14)
133.38 111,39

(12.70} (i10.54)

. (21.60)

. 78.30

(133.00) (283.14)
95,00 250.88
2.20 291
(48.41) 16.81
. 1,249.4%

168.99 -

(20336 (1,301.50)
2126 156 59

{(23.67) (21.63)

(146.60) (16327

{183.38) (80.32)
{98.41) 47.48
123.13 7525
24.72 123.13




Argon Hotels Private Limited

CIN - USSIOIDL2ZMPTCI6 1614

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
{4l amonmts in Rupees miflions. unless otherwise stated}

i. Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- In current accounts
Cash on hand

Wote:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

24.07 12229
(65 .84
24.72 123.13

(a} Daring the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company transferred a cash gencraning unit on slump sale basis to Holding Company vide business transfer agreement
dated 28 March 2023 The assets were transferred at a consideration of INR 750.00 and the difference between the consideration and carr¥ing value of asscls
{Property Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Assets and (ther [ntangible Assets o INR 513,30 and net current liability of INR i 1.05) transferred amounting 1o INR
229 75 (net of starnp duty amounting to INR 18.00) was recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an exceptional gam {refer note 46). The consideration
receivable for sale of assct was adjusted against the outstanding balance of interest free loan trom the Holding Company and accordingly considercd as a non cash

lransactiomn.

(b} As at 31 March 2022, the Compuny rectassificd s Hotel Land and Building at Fairfield by Marrott, Chennai as asset held [or sale. The asset held for sale was
measured at fair value less cost to seli of INR 300.00 and the difference of INR 186.38 between the carrying value and fair valuc was recognised as Joss under the
head “exceptional item’. During the previous vear ended 31 March 2023, the Company sold the asset for a sales consideration of INR 328,30 (excluding impact of net
current liabiltity transferred of INR 9.92) us 4 going concern on a stump sale basis. The gain amounting to INR 22.75 {net of expense on sales INR 3.60) on said
transaction was recognised as income i1 the Stalement of Profit and Loss as an 'exceptional item’ in the previous year (refer note 46). The sales proceeds amounting ko
INR 250.00 was adjusted against loan / other payables to holding company and accordingly is considered as a non cash transaction.

ii. Movementin linancial lizbilitics - Borrowings including accrued interest

Opening Balance

Changes from financing cash flows

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Repayment of non-current horrowings

Proceeds from current borrowings

Finance cost paid

Other non cash changes

Repayment of non-current berrowings directly trom proceeds of asset held for sale
Finance cost expense

Interest expense on financial liabidities - others

Interest expense on fease lizhility

Closing Ralance

iii. Movement in lease liabilities :

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1,284.63 1.297.11
- 1.249.49
{203.36) (1.301.50)
2126 156.59
{146.60) (163.27)
- (13833
18016 221 66
(481} (9.47)
{(27.57) (2745}
1,103.71 1,284.63

For the year ended 31

For the vear ended 31

Particulars
March 2024 March 2023

Balance as at beginning of year ) 277.68 273.84
Amounts recogrised in statement of profit and loss as interest expense 27.57 2745
Rebate on rent - {1.58)
Adjusement {44 .53) -
Payment of izase liabiilies (23.67) (21.63)

237.03 277.68

Balance as at end of vear

iv. Cash Flows from operating activities section in statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7

"Statement of Cash Flows"

The notes from Note T te Notc 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date artached
for BSR& Co. LLLP

Chartered Accotintants
IC Al Firm Registration No, 10]1248W/W-100022 o

L’}\Lmi Nei Q.

Rahul Nayar
Partner
Membership No.: 308605

Rajat Mchra
Director
DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Datg- 29 May 2024

Place Gurugram
Iyate: 29 May 2(24

fur and on behalf of Brard of Direclors of
Argon Hotels Private Limited

o

Direcrar

DIN: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
DNate 29 May 2024
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Argon Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Carporatc information

1.2

Argon Hotels Private Limited (the Company') is a company domiciled in India. The Company was
incorporated in India on 3 April 2007 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by
shares. The Company was [ormerly known as Premier Inn India Private Limited, and the name was changed
w.e.f. 6 September 2017. The registered office of thc Company is at Caspia Hotels Delhi, District Centre
Crossing, Opp. Galaxy Tovota Outer Ring Road, Haiderpur, Shalimar Bagh, North West, Delhi, [ndia,
110088 and the corporate office of the Company is situated at 14th Floor, Building 10 C, Cyber City, Phase-
I, Gurugram, Haryana, india, 122002,

The Company is principally engaged in the business of owning internationzally branded holels across key
cities in the Indian sub-continent. Presently, the Company has three operational hotels under it i.e. (Fairfield
by Marriott - Punc, Goa, and Bangalore).

Basis of preparation

A. Statement of Compliance

W,

Thesc financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the “Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board
of Directors on 29 May 2024.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies, including changces therelo, are included in note no. 2 and
2(A).

Functional and presentation carrency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s [unctional
currency. All amounts have been rounded oft to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been preparcd on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which

are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

Items Measurement Basis

Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments

Also refer note 40 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.

Use of estimates and judgments
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.




Argon Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Ail amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

iii)

e,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Judgements:;

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is:

Leases

Critical judgements in determining the lease period:

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a leasc-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it
is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating
the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken
over the lease term, costs rclating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset
to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying assel and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in the future possiblc periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances.

Assumpticns and estimation uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilities within the next financial

year is:
Provisions and contingencies

The asscssments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and other intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, right of use assets
and other intangible assets are based on cstimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook,
expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition, known technological advances. The
Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, right of use
assets and other intangible assets at the end of each reporting date.

Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.




Argon Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

iv)

vi}

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markets arc not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. fudgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Also, refer note 37 for further disciosures.

Measuremcnt of expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates arc updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Recognition of Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxabie profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused Lax losses and deductible tcmporary diflerences, o the extent thal it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting dale and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

vii) Leasing arrangements; Determination of discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental berrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated
or for the porttolio of leases with similar characieristics.

Current and non-current classification

Bascd on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current
and non-current classification of asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
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The Company has an established contro! framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including
Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. I third party information
is used to measure fair valucs then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requircments of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal markct for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible.

Fair values are catcgorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
cither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable
inputs).If the inputs used to measurc the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value bierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its cntircty at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurrcd.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 37.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capitai work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress,

Cosl comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criterta are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset 10 its working condition
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for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
ifit is probable that the future cconomic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

(iains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or

loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-linc method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). Further, leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of lease term and their uscful lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful {ife.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categorics of asscts is as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life Useful life as per
(Years) Schedule 1) to the
Companies Act, 2013
_ (Years)
Building 1560 | ! 60 ..
Computers and accessories 3-6 3-6
Plant and machinery 5-25 15
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 10
Vehicle 8 8
Office equipment 5-10 5

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful lives,

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
tHence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different from the usefui
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013,
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Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2) Intangible assets

3)

Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially al cost. After initial recognition,
an intangible assct is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if

any.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benetits from the specific

asset 1o which it relates.

Amortisation
Intangible assets of the Company represent computer software. Computer software are amortized using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful life {at present three to ten years}). The amortization period
and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset 1s significantly different from previous estimales. the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price,
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Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assers
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost
- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through protit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost it it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL;

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPI.:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and sciiing financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solcly
payments ol principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVQCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
olherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model ussessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level becausc this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policics and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuscs on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the saie of the assets;

— how the perlormance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

business modei) and how those risks are managed; and
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— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales

and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and forthe cre d it risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic

lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

[n assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it

would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial
assets at

These assets are subsequently measured at fair valuc. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

 FVTPL

Financial asscts
at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

_Debt investments
at FVOCl

These assets are subsequently measured at fair valuc. Interest income
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losscs
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI1 are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity
investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measurcd at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losscs
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or {oss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset cxpire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
rctain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not

derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms arc modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially diffcrent. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offserting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

v. Interest free loans

VI

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present valuc technigue with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans.
The difference between the transaction price and the fait value of such loans have been recognised as equity
component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs
and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification in the terms of such
loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it becoming perpetual debt
such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been treated as other equity.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities
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Financial assets:
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company cvaluates whether the cash [lows of the modified

asset are substantially difterent. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modificd asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the

modified liability arc substantially different. [n this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
exlinguished and the new financial iiability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recogniscs loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is *credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the

financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

-significant financial ditficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for two years or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount cqual to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit

losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the cxpected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
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the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that resuit from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument

is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assct has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considets reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical expericnce and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as

the present value of all cash shortfails (i.e. the difference between the cash flows duc to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical cxpedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost arc deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the asscts.
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or [oss and is recognised in OCL

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforccment activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts duc.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impaitment
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs 1o sell
and value in use. In assessing vaiue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and

risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit) {CGU3.
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated,
if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of

CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwil! is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior perieds, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

[nventories which comprises stock of food and beverages (including liquor), operating supplies and stock-
in-tradc are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. In
determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO"} method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make

the sale.
Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect ot which a rcliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time valuc of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of moncy and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates at

each reporting date,
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability 1s a possible obligation that arises from past events whosc existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occutrence of one or more uncertain [uture events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probabie that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
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reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in conngction with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitaiised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period
during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term cmployee henefits

Empioyee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-lerm employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus,and cx-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services
is recognised as an expense as the related scrvice is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits

(e,

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Fmployee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-cimployment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
thesc schemes. The Company’s contributions are recorded as an expense in the statcment of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the rclated scrvice. I the contribution already paid is less
than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit
payable under the scheme is rccognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution alrcady paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset 1o the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future

payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity
The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such

defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final

obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market vields on
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(c)

government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obiigations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recoghized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated abscnces

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future scrvice periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the cnd ol such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the peried in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the Com pany
has transferred to a custorner when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing, the
same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under an
obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer),

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and other services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services (including banquet and
allied services) relating to hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale
of food and beverages which is recognised once the rooms are occupied. food and beverages are sold and
other services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.
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12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest ratc’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability,

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currcney transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange dilferences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on
a net basis.

14) Income taxes

Income tax expensc comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a busincss combination, or an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable
or receivable the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflect uncertainty, related
to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for
* temporary diffcrences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that:

- is nota business combination; and
- loss at the time of the transaction (i)affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and (ii) does

not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences
* temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probablc that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future: and
* taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits wili be available against which they can
be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.
[f the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then
future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the
business plans of the Company. Deferred tax asscts are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized: such reductions are reversed

when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is mcasured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date.

'The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, 1o recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc offset if there is a legally enforceabie right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets and Lhey relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax {iabilities and assets ona net basis or their tax assels
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components and for which discrete financial information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments™, the operating
segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the
CODM to aliocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.
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16) Lcases: Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA™) through Companics {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had issued Ind AS
116 Leases which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets
out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessors
and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance shect lcases accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessce) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is or
contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a petiod of time in
cxchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term lcases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recogniscs the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lcasc.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the
contract to the iease and non-fease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the

lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the Icase
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
any asset restoration obligation, and less any lcase incentives received. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-
measurement of leasc liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets arc depreciated 1o
a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the leasc payments 1o be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-substance fixed’
payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is rcasonably certain to
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that it will exercise the option. Minimum lcase payments include the cost of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-usc assct if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any

lease modification.

Variable leasc payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which
guarantee 2 minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-
substance fixed’ leasc payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which
are ‘in-substance fixed" are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and Icase payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the leasc the Company classifies each of its ieases as either an operating fease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating lcascs as income on a
straight- linc basis over the lease term. In case of a finance leasc, finance income is recognised over the
lcase term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in
the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesscs the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an

operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

17) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share arc calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti - dilutive.

18) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value,

™
3]

e/
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19) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax
(EBITDA) as a separate linc item on the face of the Statement of profit and loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the Company does
not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense, exceptional items and tax expense.

20) Discontinued opcrations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Company and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of opcrations;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographic arca of
operations; or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held-for-sale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of profit and loss is
re-presented as il the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year.

21) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary
activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the
financial statements.

22) Expenditure
Expenses arc accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and Habilities.
2(A) Changes in material accounting policies
1) Material accounting policy information

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policics (Amendment to Ind AS 1) from 1 Aprit 2023,
Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policy themselves, they impacted
the accounting policy information disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policics,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting pollcy mformatlon that users need to
understand other information in the financial statements. T

L/
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2) Deferred tax related to asset and liabilities arising from a single transaction:

The Company has adopted Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to Ind AS 12) from 1 April 2023. The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption to exclude transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting differences e.g., leases and
decommissioning liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, an entity is required to recognise
the associated deferred tax assets and liabilitics from the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components
of equity at that date. For all other transactions, an entity applies the amendments to transactions that occur
on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The Company previously accounted for deferred tax on leases by applying the ‘integrally linked' approach,
resulting in a similar outcome as under the amendments, except that the deferred tax asset or liability was
recognised on a net basis. Following the amendments, the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax
asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred 1ax liability in relation to its right-to-use assets as at 1
April 22 and thereafter. However, there was no impact on the balance sheet because the balances qualify
for offset under paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as
at [ April 2022 as a result of the change. The key impact for the Company relates to disclosure of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (See Note 7).
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5 Non-current financial assets - Qther financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits {duc to malure afier 12 months from the reporting date)*#
Security deposits

* including intcrest accrued on fixed deposits INR 0.68 (31 March 2023 - [INR 0.31)
# Includes deposits under lien amounting to INR 77.26 {31 March 2023 - INR 36.26)

6 Other tax assets

Tax deducted at source

<This space was intentionally left blank>

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

77.94 39.57
4.78 4.25
82.72 43.52

As at
31 March 2024

36.66

As at
31 Marceh 2023

30.45

36.66

30.45




Argon Hotels Private Limited

CIN - USS101DL2M P TCi6L614

Naotes to the financial statements for the year enderd 31 Murch 2024
AN cmnuns e Rupees nbiions, wnfess ofherwse stated

Fur the year ended
31 March 2023

Far the year ended
31 March 2024

7 Income tax
A: The major compoenents of income tux expense/{income} are
Recognised in profic ar loss

Current tax
Deferred tax

Recognised in other compreheasive income
[ncome Tax on other comprehensive income

Recancilintion of effective tax rate (fax expense and the accounting prafit multilpied by Company's demestic tax rate)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Y Amount Y Amount
{Loss¥profit before tax [102.08) 15201
‘Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 1517 [35.69) 2517 3826
Nan recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences (2520 2572 279 424
Lxempt income-transfer of busingss 1o holding company - - {27 66) {42.04)
Mon-deductible dilferences - Others 0.03 {0.03) (018} (.27
Others - - {011} {617}
Effective tax rate - - - -
B. Deferred tax assets / liahilities
As at As at

Beferred tax assets

31 March 2024

31 March 2013

Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 733.04 72113
Linabsorbed capital loss 1789 14832
Provision for emplovee benefits 1.9 7
1255 allowance for trade receivables 1.95 1.36
Barrowings .01 0.0
Lease Liability 59.66 69 38
Others - 172
824.21 324.09

Deferred tax tiabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 46.52 58.10
Right of use asscis 22 64 3544
Trade Payables a.01 1.25
6017 94.77
755,04 72932

Net deferred tax asset

Net deferred tax asset/(liability) recognised*

*The Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation and carey forward business losses as per [ncoma Tax Act, 1961, In view of absence of reasonable certainty of sufficient

fulure taxable profits, deferred tax assets has been recognised o tha extent ol deterred tax liabilitics only.

C. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2024

Balancc as at 11|  Deferred tax differences | Bafance as at 31 March 2024
Particulars April 2023
Deferred tax ussets
Lease Liability 69.88 (10.22) 59 66
Unabsorbed business loss and depreciation 721.13 11.91 733.04
Unabsorbed capital loss 2882 iKY 27.99
Provision tor smployee bencfits 1.17 0.39 1.56
I.oss allowance for trade receivables 1.36 0 59 1.95
Borrowings 6.0 - 101
Uhthers 1.72 (1.72) -
§24.09 .12 824,21
Delerred tax linbilities -
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels {58100 11.5% {46.52)
Right of use assets {35.44) 1280 12264y
Trads Payables {1.23) 1.22 {0ty
{94.77) 25.60 {69.17)
Total 720,32 25,72 75504

?{4"‘_/
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31 March 2023

Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
205132
2030-3]
2029-30
2028-2
2027-28
2637
Mever expirs
A0E0-37

Expiry Date
(Finangixl Yenr)
2029-30
2028-29
202728
o327
Mever expire
2030-31

Balance as at 01  Deferved tax differences | Balance as at 31 March 2023
Particulars April 2022
Deferred tax assets
Lease Liability 68,92 0.96 69.88
Unabsorbed business loss and depeeciation G836 15 34.98 721.13
Unabsorbed capual logs - 2882 28.82
Provision for employee benefits 127 (110 L7,
Loss allowance for trade reccivablas {43 nu3 | 36
Barrowings {5.18) 5.19 0.4l
Chhers f.al 1.11 1.72
753.20 7(L8Y 82405
Deferred tax liabilities
Trads Payabies - (1,23} (1.23)
Praperty. plant amd cguipment and intangible assets {30.22) {27.88) (SRS
Hight of use assets 210 (37543 (35443
(28.12) (66.55) (94.77)
Totxl 725.68 4.24 72532
E. Tax Losses carried forward
Tux losses for winch no deferred tax assct was recognised with expiry date are as follows:-
As at
31 March 2024
Amount
Business loss 1138
Hustness loss 1.32
Business loss 20018
Business loss 407 47
Busingss loss 264912
Business 1oss 34736
Unabsorbed depreciation 1614.78
Capital Loss 122 34
As at
31 ¥arch 2023
Amount
Busingss loss 118
Business loss 46748
Business loss 26912
Busingss loss 347 38
[Inabsorhed Depreciation 1.580.11
Capital Loss 12594
)

-

<This space was intentionally left blank>
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]

(Mher non-current asseis
(Unsecured. considered good)

Capital advances
Adlvances other than capital advances

Taxes pard under appeal
Prepaid expenses

Inventories

fvalued at fower of cost and net realisable vafne)
Beverages

Current financial asscts - Trade receivables

fUnsecurad)

Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2024

4.32

15.36
1.0%
20.68

AS at
30 March 2024

1.59
1.59

As at
31 March 2024

Ax at
31 March 2023

0,70

15.36

1.06
17.12

As at
31 March 2023

1.23
1.23

As at
31 March 2023

- Considered good 2824 30.39

- Credit impatred 127 419
Unbilled revenuc*

- Considered good 543 344

36.94 38.02
Less: Loss allowance (777 {5.41)
28.17 32.61
a} Refer note 36 for ducs from related parties
t) The Company's caposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances reiated to trade receivables are disclosed in note 37
* Net advance from customers of INR (1 88 (3] March 2023 - INR 0 T4y
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
‘ - ¥ '
Particulars Lnbilted revenue Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2 -3 vears More than 3 Total
manths YEUr . vears
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 543 21.23 210 378 0.66 047 33.67
Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 279 0.03 045 3.27
Total 5.43 21.23 2,10 6.57 069 .92 36.94
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Unbilled revenue Lessthan 6 1 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2- 3 years More than 3 Tatal
maonths year - years

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 344 18.89 1022 1.16 0.02 0.68 33,83
Undisputed Trade receivabies — credit impaired - 2.70 0.09 ¥ 0.52 0,70 4.19
Total 3.44 21.59 10.31 1.34 0.54 | 0,74 3R.02

The company does not have any disputed dues which are receivables as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
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11 Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents Ay at Asat

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Balances with banks in current accounts 24.07 122.29
Cash on hand 0.63 0.84
24.72 123.13
12 Current financial assets - Others Asat Asat
(Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security deposits 0.75 0.36
0.75 0.56
13 Other current assets As at As at
{Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Staff advance 0.01 0.01
Advanee to suppliers 6.99 4.59
Balance with statutory authoritics 3.50 9.74
Prepaid expenses® 7.353 8.64
19.85 22.98

*[ncludes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting to INR 0.74 (31 March 2023 - INR 2.94)
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Nates ra the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
Al amannis in Hupees millions, unlevs othenvise siater)

14 Equity share capital As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Nunther of shares Amount
Autharised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 102000000 1,020.00 102,000,000 1.020.00
102,000,000 1,020.00 102,000,000 1,020,600
lssued, subscribed and fully paid up
Lquiny shares of ISR 10 2ach 7,770,492 7T 7,770,402 770
7,770,492 770 10,492 T7.70
a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the ¢nd of reporting year
For the year enided Far the vear ended
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Numiher of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and Fully paid wp
At the beginning ol the year 7,770,492 770 7,770,492 7770
Balance at the end of the year 7,770,492 77.70 7,770,492 77.70

k) Righis, preferences and resteictions attached o equity shares

The Company as only one class of equity shares having the par value of [INR 10 per share Fach holder ol equity share is entitied 1o one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled 10 receve
dividend us and when declared In the evear of liquidation of the Company, the halder of equity shares will he entiflad to receive remaining assets of the Company, after dismibution of alt
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the nuntber af eqity shares held by the sharelwidsrs.

c) Shares held by holding/ ar their subsidiazies/ assaciares
As at Asx at
31 Wlarch 2024 31 March 2023
Mame of sharehalder Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Eqaity shares on INK 10 each
SAMH! Hotels Limited (Huolding Company TIHLA92 7T 7770492 7770

d) Details of shureholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company and equily sharey held by the Halding Company

As ar As at
Name of shareholder 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number af shazes Amount Nuomber of shares Ampunt
Eguity shares on [NR 10 each
T 492 L0 % 7710402 {0

SAMHI Hatels Limited {Holding Company)*
*1 equiry share 15 heid by Me. Gyana Das as a nomines sharzhalder

As per records of the Company, including its register ol sharcholders! members and vther declarations received from shareholders regerding beneficial inferest, the above sharcholding represents
hoth lepal and beneficial ownership of shares.

¢ Ne shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back during the periad of fve years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date.

) Details of prometers sharehulding as at year cod @

As at 31 March 2024
S No, Tromoter Name No. of shares at the Change during the Ne. of shares at the Y% of Total Shares Y change during
heginning of the year year end of the year the year
1 SAMH] Hotels Linited (Holding Company) 7,770,492 N TIM 492 100% -
As ut 31 March 2623
$ No, Promoter Wame No. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the h af Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
1 SAMHI Hotels Limited {Holding Company) 1,770,492 - 7,770,492 106% -

LI}
tH
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3t March 2024
(AN amounts in Rupees mullions, nnfzss otherwise stadeds

I3 Other equity

Retatnzd earnings
Captitai reserve :
Equity component of iterest itee loan from holding company

a) Retained earnings

Ratance at the beginning vl the vear

Loss for the year from continuing operations
Profit tor the year from discontinued operations
Transferred from other comprehensive income

Retained earnings represent the amount of accurnulated losses of the Company.

b) Other comprehensive income - Remeasurements of defined henefit plans
Balance at the beginning ol the year

Remeasuremants of defined benefit liabitity / usset {net of tax)

Transterred to retained zarnings

Balance at the end of the vear

Remeusurements of defined bencefit liability / asset comprises actuarial gains and fosses.

c} Capital reserve
Ralance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

This represents capital reserve on busiress combination being the difference between purchase consideration and fair value of net assets/liabilities acquired

d) Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company
Balance at the beginning of the yvear

Luan repaid to Holding Company - reeognised directly in ether cquity

Loan from Holding Company recerved - recognised directly in other equity
Consideration of slump sale adjusted against interest {rec loan {refer note 4)

(2,533 73) (2,431.41)
38048 180.4%
205047 1 48] 48
(102.78) {169.45)
(2.431.41) (2,583.66)
{102 0R) (68.06)
. 220.07
(0.24) 0.24
(2,533.73) (243141}
(0.24) 0.24
0.24 {0.24)
180.48 380.48
380.48 350.48
1,881 48 2,731.48
; (100.40)
168.99 .
. (750.00)
2,050.47 1,681.48

[o eartier years. the Company had taken unsecured loan from SAMEI Hotels Limited, the helding campany which carried interest &% 12% p.a. The shove lvan was

repavable on dernand as per the mutval consent of boih parties.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, terms of unsceured loan from holding company were modified w.e.f | April 2021 and the loan outstanding as on 1 April 2021
{including accrued interest thercon) atnounting Lo [INR 2,731 48 was converted inte interest free perpetual debt, repayable at the option of the Company.

)
"{’N <This space was intentionally left blank>
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MNotes to the hnacial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(A ety i Moy saffives, walees asenetse siered)

I6 Mgn-curremt Financial Liabilities - Burcowings Asat As al
31 March 2024 YE Manch 2023
ap From hanks
Tarm laans (socurcd} BiE e BT AN
i.ess Current maturities uf tag-tem berrowings Jrofer noke 207 (L% 44) [E AR
bzss” Interest accrued an bormowings (refir note 23 {111 I rE.3))
8BRS T2 1.024,28

bi From financial institulions
“Term teans (securcd) % 432

.59} [2 264

Lese: Curnent matarties o long-teree horrew ings (rafer nate 209

[{LXNIN] -

it accrued
790 5206

T.oss: Inter

W62 107704
Carrvi Carryi Interest rate charged per
rreeg AEIYIng Sanetioned Annum
Pariiculars Amount as 0a 31| Amounlason | T L R LT Security detsil
March 2024 | 31 March 2023 { As at 3t Asat 31 epayment Termts urly felails

{INR Miltions) | {INR Miliions) [ o8N siqech 2024 | March 2023

a} Term loans (rom banks

CITIBANK. N.A My LTzl L.OB3.00 ) 3 months 0- |3 menths T-bllf The loan is repayablz in 44 stmctared  guasterly(i] First oxclusiee margage an the Assals of borowsr amd Asser of Coo
| i tats + | rate + Margin [instaliments startng aficr 12 months feemy the firsy Borsawct (Barque Horels Pyt Lid and SAMET IV Businzes Hotcls Pyt Lih).]
: hlaroin {1.75%) Lo, |disbursement date i o 27 Fehroane 2023 inciud: over deaschoud rights for [cased assows
3.753%) e, 0 6% i1y HypoCecat:ca un the recevvables and Bank accounis

10 T Durivg the current vear, loan from Ciibask. N A wasae) Y9% of share pledege of the berrowess shaces and Naon disposal
further scll-down as below: undenaking on the balznce un-pledged from SAMHL Botels Etd.

1. Fedeeal Rank amited TR 386 60 polhon 1) Copporate Guarantee of SAMHE Horcls Lk,

2. HOFC Bank Limited TSR 228 00 miilon.

3 IDFC FIRST Bank Limited  [INR 133 00 million.

Tcdoral Bank Limetad 3w 37 - 3R6 Al Rupo - o - |The laam is mpasable in 44 structorcd  quartcrdy |1} First evciugive moamgage o the Asscs of botroner and Assat of Cal
Margin ingiallmenis staning From 31 March 2024 Bormowsr (Barque Hotcls Pyt Lad and SAMHL IV RBusincss Hoteis Pt L))
(3 73%) e lud: s oves | hodd righis for leased aesets
11.23% w) Bl pothecation vn b receivabies and Bank aceounts
wr Wsoof share pledge of the Bormowers shares and non dispesal
wlertaking on the balance un-pledued from SARMIEE Hatels 1Ld,
i) Camporats Guarantss of SAMHI Hotals g
HOFC Bank Limitod 197 34 - 224 00| 3 meonthes T - |The loan 5 wpavable 0 4% srscoared  quanerlyeh First osclisie moreage on the Assers of borrmer and Asset of £
bill rate + instabtments stnbng o 31 March 2024, Borrywer {Bargue Hotols Pue Lid and SabH] Y Busimess Hetels Pa Ll
Margmn gt rerteage over leaseheld it T Jeasal assels,

i) Hypothecation on the reccivables and Benk acconnts
my Y of share pledpe of the borrewers shaws and ren dispasal

5033

W77
undectaking e tfe alance un-pledped from SAMEI Hotels Tid
wi Corpurat: Guarantee of SAMHI Howls Led.
1DFC FIRST Bank 131401 13200 Repo 1 < |The loan is repasable 0 44 strugtured  quarterls[1) Frst escugive momgame on the Assels of bosower and Asset of Ci-
Limited Maryin ingtailmezts starting froms 31 March 2024, Drwrrowver [Barque Efacls Por Lid aod SAMIE FY Business Motes Put L)),
[3.75%] ¢ melnching martgags over leasshold rights Far leasad ssets
1.23% i} Hrpothecatien o the receinables and Bank acconnis
i) 9% of share pledge of the borowers sharee and non desposal
undentakarne ou the lalzuee coepbodesd Gon SAMIED Hoteds Ll
vy Corporate Guarantes of SANHI Floels Lia
|
|
by Term loans Mrom fitancisl instilotions L
Citicarp Finance {India} 3.5t 3432 3300 3 months T- [3 momths T-hilll The iran a5 repavabic o Jd o structured  guarteels (1) Firsh cxecluging mermeage on the Assers of borrower and Asset of Co-
Lad ¢~CFiIL™) ! bill rate + | rats+ Margm [instaiments starting afler 12 menths from the first| Bormower (Barque Hotels Pt Crd and SAMHI IV Busingss Hazls M. Ltd),
' ! Magm (. 73%0 i, [dispursement date @ ¢ 27 Februare 2023 weludite: Memzage avet leasehold righes for e assets
i [ANTL SIS 11.62% Ha patheatian on the reeenablys ard Bank agcounts,
W0 62% Dring che current seas oam Dom Citworp Fismeelwd S9% of shae plolse of te booewerss stares and non dlisposal]

{ledia) Limeted was further scll-down to Adiva Birlauedertaking an the balaoce un-pledged from $AMHI Hotols Lid,
Fimance Limited @ [NR 3100 mullon. Subzequent tolivy Corpurate Guarantue of SAMIE 1korls Lid

donnsell. the remaining loan is repasable in |7 structured
quartzrly inséallments staring droes 31 Mazeh 2024

il First evclusine medpgape oo the Assets of Soremer amd Assct of Co-

Aditva Rirlg Fizanes 333 - 3.0G | 3 months T- - |The lan s repavaeie o L9 steoelured  yuaney
Lurnili=d ball rage 1 irsstallments staring from 31 Mazch 2024, Borrowct {Barque Hotels Put Lid and SAMHS Y Busuwss Hotuls Pt Lods
Margin incluchng mangage aver leasehold rights for leased assets.
{3.60%0) i up Hrporreeation on ¢he reecyables and Boak acceunts.
103, 62% iy W% of share plodgs of the harrowers shares and noe disposa’

untertaking on the beloace un-pledeed from SAMEN Fierels Led
1)y Carporate Guarantes of SAMHI Hotels Lid

¢} Infarmation ahoot the Company ‘s cxposurt ta mterest rate ane liquadits risks s ncluded m acte 37

U} The Company did not hans gy defaults i the epayment of foans and interest. Furtleer, theas have been oo breack of ioan coverants i the curnont sar
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Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CAN qmorwts in Rupees mithons, idess otherwise stuted)

17 Non-current finarcial liabilities - Lease liabilities

As at
31 March 2023

As at
3t March 2024

Lease liabuives (refer note 420 210p92 25021
210,92 250,21
18 Non Current financial liabifities - Trade payables
Trade payables
- Wtal vutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) - -
- total outstanding dugs of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterpriscs - 5.65
- 5.65
a} The Company's cxposure to currercy and fiquidity risks related to trade payables is discloscd in note 37
b Refer note 36 for retuted parly disclosure.
As at 31 March 2024
Qutstanding for follewing periods from the date of transaction
Particulary Accried cxpenses [L.ess than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Totat
MSEME - - - - - -
Others - - . . . R
Total - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
Dutstanding For fallowing periads lrom the date ol transaction
Particulars Acerueed expenses | Less than 1 year|  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - . - - - -
Others - 5.65 - - - 5.65
Total | - 5.65 - - . 5.65
The Company does not have any disputed dues which are payable as at the year end,
19 Non carrent provistany As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for empiovee benefils
Gratuity (Rufer note 29 ) 051 033
Compensated absences {Kefer note 29 1 1.06 1.G8
1.57 1.41
20 Currenl [inanciat liabilitics - Borrowings As at As at
fSecured 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bank overdrafts and cash credits * 17917 157.91
Current maturities of long-ierm borrewings {refer notz 16 ) 20,43 46.85
199,60 204,76
* includes accrued intarest of [MB 1,35 (3] March 2023 - INR 130
Sanctioned Interest rate charged per .
Particulars A Arsum Re]'?aymem Security details
{INR Millions) | Asat 31 March As at 3t erms
2024 March 2023
CITIBANK, N.A. 200.00 |3 months T-bill {3 months T-  |Repayable on ¢} First exclusive mortgage on the Assets of borrower and
rate - Margin bilk rate + demand Assel of Co- Borower (Burque Hotels Pyt Lid and]
{3753%)e Margin SAMEN IV Business Hotels Pyt Lid), ineluding mortgape
10.77% (3.75%) ie. over leasehold rights for leased assets.
[ 6285 ii) Hypathecation on the receivablas and Bank accounts

11} 99% of share pledpe of the bormowers shares and Non
disposal undertaking on the balance un-pledged from
SAMHI Hotels Lid.

w) Corparate Guarantee of SAMHL Hotels Ttd

i e e e et F e e 1+ s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN cprtnmis o Repees sultions, unless otherwise suded)
2t Current financial liabilities - Lease liahilities

As at
31 March 2024

Asal
31 March 2023

Lease liabilities {rafer note 42) 611 2747
26,11 27.47
22 Current financial linbilities - Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade payables
- tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {MSME) 24 7.74
- total owstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small emerprises 12333 12806
125.57 135.80
a) Refer Note 41 for disclosures under Micro, $mall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMERD)
) Refer Note 36 for dues 1o related parties
¢} The Company's exposure to currency and liguidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 37
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Averued cxpensesi Less than 1 year| 1-2 vears 1-3 years More than 3 vears Total
MSME - 224 - - - 2.24
{thers 289 440 281 6.41 0.80 123.33
Total 28.91 R6.64 .81 6.41 .80 125.57
As at 31 March 2023
Cuestanding for following perinds from the date of iransaction
Particulars Accrued expenses| Less than 1 year|  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
MSME - 758 0.15 .01 - 7.
Others 38,88 52,99 2467 9.98 1.54 128.06
Total 38.88 60.57 24.82 9,99 1.54 135,80
23 Current financial liabilities - Others As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employee related payebles 402 221
Payable for capiral assets 73 918
(ther payablas* - 712
Interest accrued on borrowings (refer note 16 ) 0.46 282
11.85 21.34
* This represents the excess consideration received in respeel Lo suke of Fairhield by Marriott, Chennai, The same s to be refunded by the company.
24 Other current liabilities Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Adwvance from customers 4.69 2.99
Statutory ducs payabie 911 11.31
13,80 14.30
25 Current provisions As at As at
31 March 2024 3t Murch 2023
Provision [or emplovee henefits
Gratutty (refer note 29} 024 005
Compensaled ubsences (reter note 207 0.89 (.88
1.13 0.93

iy
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
{48 conesenis 11 Rugpoes millions, wfess othervive Sicted)

26

27

28

29

Revenue from operations

Nale of services

- Room revenue

- Food and beverage revenue

- Recrzation and other services

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

497 82 510.70
121,46 111.43

8.99 6,27
628,27 628,40

The contract tiabiiits primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance ohligation is over! services
delivered. Advance collection is recogmsed when payment is received before the related performance obligation is salisfied This includes advances received [fom the customer
towards rooms ¢ restavrant’ banquets. Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is mef 1.e. on room stay! sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services.

Excess of revenua over invancing 65 recorded as unhilled revenue.

Contract liahilities
- Advance from customers

As at
3E March 2024

4,69

As at
31 March 2023

2.59

Revenue of INR 2 80 (31 March 2023: INR 5.95} recognised in the reporting period was included in advance ltom customer balance at the beginning of the period.

Trade receivables

Mates:-

29.17

t. Considenng the naturs of business of the Company. the above trade receivables is converted into cash within the same operating cvele.

2, Revenue recognised 1n the statement of profit and loss is same as the contracted price.

Other incame

[nterest income from financial assets at amortised cost
- bank deposits

Governmenl grant

Provision/Liahility ro longer required written back
Gain on modification of financial Hability*

COVID 19 related rent concessions

Unwinding of discount on security depesit

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous incoime

For the year ended

31 March 2024

azal

For the year ended
31 March 2023

2.57
a7
393
10.87
1.58
010
009
0.78

20,49

* During the previous year, the Company had agreed 10 dolerred payment terms for the certain amount outstanding as payable in books to certain vendors. This has resulted in

medification in terms of Anancial liabulity, hence a gain of INR 10.87 has been reeorded.

Clast of materials consumed

Consumption of faod and beverages
Inventory at the beginning of the vear
Add: purchases during the year
lnveniory at the end of the year

Employee benefits expense

Satares, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer 'a" belaw)
Compensated absences (refer b halow)

Staff welfare expenses

a. Defined contribution plans

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2623

113 113
32.05 35.54
(1.59) (1.23)
31.69 35.44

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year endcd
31 March 2023

84.80 R1.27
G616 4.37
0.93 1.34

13.14 13.54

105,03 100,52

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salarics. 1n respect of qualifying cmptoyees towards Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and
Employees' State insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than o make the specified contributions, The contributions are charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss as they acerus. The amount recogaised ag an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund, Lahour Welfare Fund and Emplovees $tate Insurance for

the year aggregated 1o INR 6,16 (3] March 2023- INR 4.37)

b, Compensated absences
The pnincipal assumptions used in determining the obiigation are as given helow:

For the year ¢nded
31 March 2023

For the yerr ended
31 March 2024

Particelars

a %
Diiscounting rate (j1.4) T3 704
6.50 6.50

Salary growth rate (p.a)
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Nates to the finagrciad statements for the yeur ended 31 March 2624
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™

¢, Deflined benefit pian

Giratuity

i. The Company has a defined bencfir gratuity plan. Fvery employee wha has completed five vears or more of service gets a gratuity on departurs at 15 days salary (last drawn salary)

for cach completed year of service.

ii. These plans typically expuose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investtment risk, inherent interest rate risk | longevity risk and salary risk

Investment risk
“The present value of the defined benefit plan Labiity {denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate whuch is determtined by reference to market vields at the end

ol the reporting pened on govarnment bonds.

Interest rate risk
The defined benetit obhgation calculated uscs a discount rate hased on government bonds. tf bond yields tatl, the defingd benefit obligation will tend 1o increase.

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plart liabitity is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the martality of plan partivipants both during and after their employment. An

incraase i the Nife expectancy of the plan participants will increase the pfan's fabitity

Salary risk
Tligher than expected increascs in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation,

ur ‘The followtng tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Stalerment of Profit and Loss, the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance

Sheet for the said plan;

a) Expense recogaised in Profit or Loss

Current servics cost
Interest cost
Total expense recognised in Profit or Loss

Expense related to continued operations
Expense related to discontinued operations

b) Hemeasurements recognised directly in other comprehensive income

Net actuarial (gain¥loss recognised in the year

- changes in demopraphic assumptions

- changes in financial asswmptions

- changes in expericnce adjustments

Amount recognised in ather comprehensive income

¢) Change in present vatue of benefit obligation

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Transfer with respect to discontinued operations

Current service cost

[nterest cost

Actaurial {GainyLoss

Benelits paid

Present value of abligation as a1 the end of the year

d) Amounts to be recognised in Balance Sheet

Present vatue of the defined benefit obligation af the end of the vear

Funded stalus
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Non-currant
Current

¥,

Far the veur ended
31 Muarch 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

021 030
0.03 0.42
0.24 0,72
024 .28
- 0.44

Far the year ended
3t March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

. {0.02)
0.24 (0.22)
0.24 (0.24)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

038 20§
; (2023
.21 030
0.03 042
0.24 {0 24)
{041 {1.06)
0.75 0.38
As at As at

31 March 2624

31 March 2023

0.75 0.38
.75 0.38
0.51 033
0.24 .05

e e e e R e L e
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Notes to the financizl statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts in Rupees mithons, wndvss overivise stted)

e,

¢) The priacipal assumptions used in determining the gratuity berefit obligation are as given below

As st As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Ecenomic assumptions B %
Discounting rate {(pa.) ER R 7.04
& 50 a 30

Salary growth rate (p.a)

1. The discount rate is generally based upon the market vizlds avaitable on Government bonds at the aecounting Jate with a term that matches that of the liabilities.
it. The salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long ternim basis.

As at As at
Demagraphic assumptions 3 March 2624 31 March 2023
Retirement gge (yoars) 38 38
Withdrawal Rate “a Yo
Agas
Up ta 30 Years 58% 8%
Fram 31 to 44 years FE% 8%
Above 44 vears 38% 58%
Monality Rate 100% [ndian assured 130% Indiar assured
lives morality (2012-143 lives mortality (2017 -t}

f} The Company best estitnate of expense {or the next yenr ts INR ©.26, {31 March 2023 - [NR 0.19)
2) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant aciuariat ussumptions, kulding othet sssumptions constant, would have affecled (he defined benetit

obligation by the amounts shown helow

31 March 2024

Increase * Decrease *
| Mscount rate {1 9% movement) (0,01} 0.1
0.01 (0.01)

Salary prowth rata (0.5% movement)

31 March 2023

Increpse * Decrease ®
Discount rate 10.5% movement) (001} 0.l
0.1 oun

Salary prowth rate (0.5% movernent}

Although the analysis does nort take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plar, 1t does provide an approximation of the seasitivily of the assumptiong

* Positive amount represents increass in provision and negative amount reprisents decrease in provision
Sensitivity changes due to withdrawal and mortality are not material and hence not disclosed There was no change in the method and assumprions used in preparing the sensitivity

analysis from prior years,

k) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

As at

Year 31 Mareh 2024
Dto ] Year 024
1to 2 Year nig
2103 Year on
3tod Year 0.05
4105 Year 0.0z
Slo6 Year 0m
& Year onwards .13
0.75

As at

Year 31 March 2023
Do Year .06
tie? Year 0.t2
210 3 Year 0.06
3tod Year 0.03
4 to 5 Year .01
Foa Year a0
6 Year onwards 0.09
0.38

1} The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obhgation as at 31 March 2024 is 1,22 vears (31 March 2023, 1.19 years)
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30 Finange costs

[nterest expense on financuat lgbilinies camied at amortised cost-
- Loan from bank and finuncial nstitution

- Loan fram helding company

- Cithers

Interest gxpense on lease liabilities

Interest an delaved deposit of statdory duey

Cllher Ananes costs

31 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and ciuwipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assels
Amoetesabiun of ather intangtble assats

Depraciation and amartisation expense refated to.
- Continued operations
- [msieontinued operations

32 Other expenses

Repair and maintinance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Advertisement and business promation
Commissicn

Commumcation

Consumption of stores and supplies
Contractual labour

Crenerat administration expenses
Bank charges

Flotel cunning expenses

[nsurance

Legal and professiong] fies

Loss on foreign exchange fuctuation {net)
Managerment and meenlive lees
Payment to auditors®

Power, fuel and water

Loss allowance for rade recievaldes
Haley and tixes

Traming cxpenses

Travelling and conveyance
Misccllancous expenses

*PFayment to auditors

Statutory audit
Remmbursemen of expenses

33 Farnings({Loss) per share (EPS}

From coentinning operations

Met loss attributable to 2quity sharefiolders

Wetghted average number of equiry shares for calculation of basic CPS
Weighted average number of equity shares for calcutation of diluted EPS
Mominal value of equity share {INR)

Basic loss per share (INR)

Crluted loss per share (TNRY

From discontinued operations

et prafit ateribserabic b cguity shareholdars

Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of basie EPS
Weighted average number of equiny shares for caleulation of dibated EDS
Nominal value of ciuily share {[NR}

Basic earning per share (INR)

Diluted earning per slare (INR)

From continuing and discontinued operations
MNet {Joss) profit auributabis 10 equety shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares vutstanding durmg the period for calcalation of basie EIS
Weightud average number of equity shares custanding d
Mominal valug of equity share (INR} LT
Bazic (lessyearmings per share {[NE)
f‘] Dilured (loss ) earmmes per shars (INR)

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

129.82 11482
- 7.96
4.8] 120
17.57 2743
47 1.00
17.49 .10
180,16 171.53

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Far the year ended
31 March 2023

78.16 £ 88
6.38 10.05
49 245

§5.03 101,08

83.03 AT a9

- 11.0%

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
3t March 2023

ing the period for calculation of diluted EPS

70 8.08
14,60 [6.36
356 765
1811 16.67
13189 3.82
.28 3.54
2554 2966
17.38 1516
251 k]
- a9
275 1.80
1.77 1.43
95.7% 67.24
0,535 241
2551 2332
285 734
5254 5112
2.36 333
%90 977
(.99 -
13.12 12.48
211 t.80
33Ln 31947
24N 218
.45 0,14
.85 234
Far the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

(102.0%)
7,770,492
7.770,492

1o
(i3 1)
(13 14y

(102.08)
7,770,492
7,770,492

1
(13,14}
(1314

3] March 2023

(68.06)
7,770,492
7,770,492

t6
(8 76)
{8.76)

22007
770,492
70492

10

28.32

8.3

15201
1770492
7710492

114l
19.56
19.56
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34 Operating Segments

i
i

e

)

The Holding Company’s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), since he is respansibic for all major decisions w r.L.
the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budact, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any sew facility CODM has examined the
Company's performance from product and geographic perspective and has identified a singte business segment Le. "Developing and running of hotels”, hence no specific

disclosures have been made.

. Information about products and services

The Company primarily deals in une business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

. Information about geographical areas

The Company provides services to customers in India, Further, there are no non-current assets located outside India.

. Information about major custemers (from external customers)

The Company does not derive revenue from one custorter which would amount to 10 per cent or more of the entity's revenus,

Contingent liabilities and commitients
fto the extent not proviced for)

Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 Asat 31 Marck 2023
Total demand Amount paid Total demand Amount paid under
under protest prufest
Income Tax Act, 1961 76 81 [5.36 70 81 1536
Other matter 45.00 - 45,00 -

(a) The Company has received an assessment order for financial year 2016-17 whereby an addition of INR 91 70 has been made to the wial income of the Campany. The
addition pertains to unexplained creditors, unexplained expenses. uncxplained salarics, legal and professional expenses claimed as deduction under Section 37 of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and differences in commission expenses as per books and 3CD report. The Company has deposited INR 15,36 against total demand of INR 76.81
and has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income-tax { Appeals) against the said addition which is pending for disposal.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company terminated the services of an employee (who was on probation al the time of termination), foltowing which he tiled
a suit before the Dethi High Court claiming wrengful termination of employment and seeking compensation of TNR 4500 towards damages and losses. The malter was
dismissed by the said court The employee filed an appeal before the Delhi High Court which is pending for hearing and finai disposal This matter was instituted against
the Company prier to its acquisition by the curtent shareholders and is covered under specific indemnities provided by the erstwhile shareholders

(¢} In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicahility of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under Erplovees
Provident Fund and Miscelluneous Provisions Act, 1952, The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative chatlenges on the application of judgement
retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods.
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36 Related party disclosures

a) Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists:
Description of relationship

Maime of related party

Flolding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited { fonmetly known as SAMII E lotels Private Limited)

t) CHher related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the current and previous vear:

Descriptioa of relationshig Name of related party

Fellow Subsidiary SAMIIL JV Bust Llatels Private Limred
Fellow Subsidiary Ageent Hotels Private Limitad

Caspa Hotels Prvate Limited

Barque Hetels Private Limited

SAMIII Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidwary
Fellow Subsidiary

¢} Related party trunsactions during the curreat veny/! previcus vear:
Particulars

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Sale uf business - siump sale {Refer nate 4) - 750.00 - -

Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowinas
Loan recevved during the year
Loan repaid during the year

- 1150 . ;
- 134.25 - -

Eguity component of interest free loan from holding company
Equity componcnt of interest free loan from halding company
Repayment of interest free loan (refer note v below)

- 530.00 - -

Finance cost
Interest on unsecured Inan

- 10.91 - -

Other expenscs

Legal and professwmal charpes {refer note 39) 7,96 15.52 - -

Other Expenses

Reimbursement of expenses

-5 ANMHI Hatels Limited

-SAMHI 1V Husingss Horels Private Limited
-Caspia Hotels Private Limited

-SAMHI Hatels { Alunedabad) Privatg Eimired

- 748 9.82
- 12 0.02
. 437 6.49

d} el ting balances ai the year end
Particulars

Holding Com pany Fellow Subsidiary
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other equity
Equity coanponent of interest free loans from Holding company 205047

1.881.18 - -

Trade receivabley
SAMHI Hotels Limited
Caspiz Hotels Private Limited

_ 0.04 . -

Trade payables

SAMHIJY Business Hotels Private Limjred 0.10
SAMHI Hotels Limired

SAMHI Hotels { Abmedabad) Private Limited -

66.96 19.77 - -
- 0.20 0.03

{i) The transactions witl refated partees ate made on terms equivalent tu those that prevail in anm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the vear-end are unsecured and settlement gceurs in
cash.

{11) Refer to note 16 and note 20 for the securities’ puarantees provided! received by the company on behalf of its velated eatities for loans obtained from bank and financial institution.

(it The Commany has provided sectrities during the vear on behalf of following fellow subsidiaries:

Partivulary 38 March 2024 31 March 2023
- Barque Hoeels Private Limited 315200 3.152.00
- SAMHI IV Busmess [otels Private Limted A4,360.00 IR

{Represanis the Iimits sanchioned by bank and financeal ingtitations to fellow
subsidiaries an account of security given by the catnpary )

{iv] For the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables telating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken

al each reporhing period
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A} Financial instruments by category and fair value

The below tabic summarizes the judgements ard estimates made in deterimning e fiir values of the financial mstruments that are (1) recognised and measured at fuir vaiue and (b measured at
amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. T provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used m determininyg fair valug, the Company has classified

irs finaneral instruments inta the three levels prescribed under the accouwnting standarel.

31 March 2024

Particutars [

Particulars

Thrungh Profit
and Loxss
(F¥TPL})

Thrangh (ther
(Comprehensive
Inzome (FYTOET)

Level of hierarchy | Fair Value Fair Value Amortised Cost
Through Prafit} Throogh Other
and Loss Comprehensive
{(FVTPL) Iacome (FYTOCT)

Financial assets
Nan-current

Other non-current financial assets - - 82,72
Current

Trade recefvables - - 29.17

Cash and cash equivalents - - 2472

Other current financial asscts - - 0.75
‘Total finangial assets - - 137.36
Finangial liabilities
Nun-¢urreat

Baomrowings 2 - - 903.62

Trade Pavables R - R

Lease liabilities - - 210.92
Current

Borrowings 2 - - 19960

Trade pavables - - 11557

Ecase liabilitics - - 2611

Other current financial liabibities - - 11.85
Total financial liahilities - - £,477.67

3f March 2023
Level of hierarchy Eair Value Fair Yalue Amortised Cost

Financial assets

Non-cuerent
Other non-cierent financial assers - - 43 82
Curremt
Trade receivables - - 32,81
Cash and cash eguivalants - - 123,13
Other current financial assets - - 056
Total linancial assets - - 260.12
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrawings 2 - - 1.077.04
Tradz Payable - - 5.65
Lease lighilities - - 25021
Current
Barrowings 2 - - 204,76
Trade payables - - [35.80
Lease liablivies - - 2747
{her current financial Jiabifities - - 2134
. - 1,722.27

‘Fotal financial liabilities

Y
#
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A) Fingncial instrumesnts hy catexury and fair value
Finaacial assets and liabiliries measured a2t amortised cost - Fair value measurements

The fair value of trade receivalles, cash and cash equivalents, other ewrrent financial assets, current borrowings, currenit rade pavables and other cumment finaneral habililies approximare their

carrying amounts. due to their shoct-tenn nature.
Interest rates on non-current barrowings (term loans fromt banks and financial mstitutions) are eqivalent to the market rate. Such botrowings are contracted at floating rates and rates are reset at

short intervals. Accordingly, the carmying value of such bowrowings approximates Fair value,
Fair value of bank deposis (included in other nen-current fnancial assets) are equivalent to thetr carmying amount, as the interest rate an Hem is equivalent to market rate.
The fair value measurament of lease Labdlitics 15 oot coquimed to be disclosed

Fair valuation of ether non-current financial assets and liabilities, non-current trade pavables has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as there is no significane difference hetwien carmying

value and fair value.

B} Measurement of Fair values
Fair values are categorised into different Jevels in a fair value hierarchy based on the (npuls usedt in the valuation techniques. There has been no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Leved 3 for the

vear ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The Company’s policy is to recognise Izansfers mtw and transfers out of fair value histarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period

B} Financial risk management
Risk management framework
The Company’s activities expose it 10 & variety of financial risks: market risk (inchiding foreign exchange risk and interest rata risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Holding Company’s Chief Finwreial OfTicer under the directions of the board of dircetors implements tinancial risk managerment policies across the Company. The Company’s risk management
policies are established to dentify and anylyse the nsks faced by the Company, 10 s¢t approprtate Tisk limits and controls, to monitor risks and adherence to limits in order to minimize the financial
impact of such risks. The risk manageinent pohicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect ehanges in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial logs to the Company if a customer o couterparty to a financial instrument fails to mest its contractual obligations. The canying amount of financial assets represent

the maximum credu osk exposure The Company has credit policies 1n place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an onpeing hasis.
The Company pobicy is to place cash and cash equivalents and other bank baiances with banks and financial institution counterpartizs with good credit rating,

The Company has given security depesus to various statutary authorities and to vendors for sceuriny services from them and remtal deposits for employes accommodations. The Company does not
expect any default from thess parties and accordingly fhe risk of defaulr is negligible or nil.

[n respect of credit exposures from trade receivables, ihe Company has palicies in place to ensure that sales on crecht without collateral are made principally to travel agents and corporate companies
with an appropriate credit history The Company has establistred a credit palicy under which each new custoaner is analysed individually for ereditwarthiness hefore ensering mio contraet, Sales o

other custorners are made m cash ar by credit cards.

The Company establishes an allowance for impainnent that represenls 85 expected credit losses in respect of trade recsivables. The management uses a simplitied approach for the purpose of
computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. [n monitaring customer credit nsk, customers are grouped according ro their credit characteristics, including whether they are an individual

or legal entiry, their peographical location, industry and existence of previous Gnancial dilficafties, if any,
There are no significant concentrations of eredit sk within the Company.
The Company considers 2 financial asset to be in default when:

= the debtar is unlikely to pay jts credit obligations to the Company in Rl or
= Ihe financial asset is mote than two years past due,

The pravision matrix used for detenninmy loss allowance on trade vecetvabbes as at 31 March 2024 is -180 days: 4.35%, 180-363 days: 20.98%, 366-547 days: 37.20%, 548-729 days: 63.71%. ==
T days: 100%.

During the period, the Compaty has made no write-ofis of trade receivables.

Reconciliation ol less allgwaece provision

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 41 1.72
Changes in loss allowatce 236 3.69
Closing balance 7.77 .41

The impairtne prayisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on 2ssumptions about risk of default and expected loss rales. The Company uses fudgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impainment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward fooking estmates ai the end of each reporting pericd.
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ii. Liguidity risk

Liquidicy risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficufty in meeting the obhgations asscciated wirh its fnancial Jiabilities that are serted by detivering cash or another firancial asset. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, a5 far as possible. that i will have sutficient liquidity to ieet it liabiltics wien they are due. under both rormal and stressed cenditions.

without incurnag unacceptable [osses or nisking damage to Company's reputation.

Manggement nodors rolling forecasts of the Company liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents an the basis of expected cash Aows to ehsure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs
Such forecasting tikes mto consideration the Group's debt refinancing plans, undrawn cetmmnitted bormowing fzoities and covenant compliance.

Lliumate responsibility for liquidity nsk management rests with the holding company's Bourd ol Threctars, which has sstablished an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the

management al the Company's short-teem. medium term and long-term funding and liquidity management requIrements.

{a) Exposare to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturilies ul financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and excluding future contractnal interest paymens,

31 March 2024

Non - derivative financial liabilties
Nenp-current barrowings

Current borrowings

Lease liabilities

Current trade pavables

Other current Tinancial lahlibies

31 March 2023

Non-derivalive linancial Habilitics
Nan-curretl borrowings
Noen-current trade payables

Current borowings

Lease liahfities

Trade pavabies

Otlwer current financial habilities

{b) Financing arrangements

Coatractual cash flows

The campany had access ko the following undrawn borrowing lacililies at the end of the reporting period;

Floating rate

Expiring withim one year (bank overdrafl and other freilities)

iii. Market risk

Carrying amourt Total 0-1 year 1-2 years 2.5 yrars More than § years

3362 914,21 - 2845 1590 73 695.03

199.60 199.60 1949 6() - - -

237.03 554.23 011 26.11 Ba4r i18.60

12557 123,57 125 57 - - -

11.83 11 85 11.83 - - -

1,477.67 1,505.46 363.13 54,56 274.14 L213.63

Contractoal cash flows

Carrying amount Total 0-1 year -2 years 2-5 years Mare than 5 years
LO77.04 109115 - 20,43 147.94 9227

565 mn - 57 - -

204.76 204.76 ML - - -

27768 714,84 2747 )| LS L] 574.90

135 B0 135.80 135 84} - - -

21.34 21.34 21.34 - - -

1,722.27 2,173.60 389.37 53.45 233.10 1.497.68

2216 43 4]

1216 43.41

Mhirket risk is the risk that the chunges in market prices such as foreign exchange tes and interest rates, that will affeet the Company’s expense or the value of s holdings of financial instruments.
e objective of market risk management is to manags aod control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optirmising the retwm.

Currency risk

Currency risk For the Company is the risk that the future cash outflows on account of pavables for management fees and other expenditure will fuctuan because of chanyes m foveign exchanpe rates.
The Company is exposed to the effects of Huctuation i the prevanling foreism currency exchange rates on its financiat posttion and cash fows, Exposure anises primarily due o exchange rate
fluctuations between the functional currency and other curmencics The Management evaluates foreian exchange rate exposure arising fiom loregn currency transactions an periedic basis and follows

appropriate risk managemant policies.

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to forcign curtency risk at the end of the reporting periad are as follows.

3F March 2023

Finaacial Kabilities
Trade payables

31 March 2623

Financial lizhilities
lrade payables

2

b

Currency

UsD

Currency

Amount in forgign
curreny (in
millions)

0.7

Amonnt in foreign
curreny (in
millions)

077

Amount in INR
(in millions)

Amount in INR
(it millinns)

63 a9
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Sensitivity analysis
A teasonably possitle strengthening (weakemag) ofihe [ndian Rupes against foreign currency at vear end would have affecied the measurament of financial instruments dencminated in foregm
currency und sffecied equiry ard profit or loss by the wmoums shown below. This analysis assumes that all oitier variables. in parlicular intetest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact off

Fowecast sales and purchases.

(Profit) ! loss Equity, net of tax
(increase} ! decrease
Effect in INR Strenpthemny Weakening Strengthentng Weakening
31 March 2624
S0 1% movement) .14 [URES! 014 (141
(Profit) f toss Equity, net of tax
(increase) / decrease
Effectin INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2023
0.04 {064y 0.64 {0.64)

5D (1% movernent)

Interest rate risk

[nterast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or flture cash flows of a financeal mstrument wilt Auciuate because of changes in marker interest rates. Tha Company’s exposure ta the risk af changes
in market Interest rates relates pranarily to the Company's borrowings obligations with floating interest rates.

{ie Compaty evaluates the mterest rates in the market on a reputar bass w oxplore the option of refinancing of the borrawings of the company. Moreover, the company's borrowings are linked to
flrating interes! rates, therchy resulteny in the adjustmenrs of its borrowang costs in line with the market interest.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate prefile of the Company’s intersst-bearing financial mstinnends s as foflows:
Amountin INR

31 March 2824 31 March 2023

Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets - bank deposits 77.94 3957

Variable-rate instrements

Financial habilities - Cash credit and overdraft fucilities from bank L7907 157.91

Financial liabilitics - Term loans from banks 915 62 107249
8.0 54,32

Financial liabilities - Term toans from financial institutions

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company docs not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financiat liabitities at Far value through profic ariess Therefore, a chanse in interest rates at the reporting dace would not atfect
profit or lnss. Also refer note 374 for fair value diselosure.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
F
A reasonably passible change of 100 basis points n interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) equity and profit or [oss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes
that all ather varables, remain gonstant.
Profit / (loss) Lquity, net of tax
increase f (decrease)

1M bp increase 100 bp decrease 1M bpincrease 100 bp decrease

31 March 2023

Frnancial liabilettes 12.36 (13.36} 12.36 (12.36)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 12.36 (12.36) 12.36 {11.36)
31 March 2023

Financial liabilities 12,65 {12.65) 12.65 (12.63)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 12,65 (12.65) 11,65 (12.65)

3§ Capital Management

The Cotnpany’s policy is to maintain a strang capital base so as 1o mawntam investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain fuere development of the business,
The Beard of directors of the Company secks 16 maintarm a balance between the higher returmns that might be possible with hegher levels of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital positicr. The Company inonitocs capital using loan to value {L.TV) merhod 1o ensure that the luan to value does not increase beyond 635% on any gven reporting date at a group level.

The company 15 not subject 1o externally impesed capital requirements.

As 4 part afits capiral management policy. the Company did net have any defauts in the repayment of loans and interest. Further, there have no breach of lean covenants in the current year.
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During the year, SAMHI Hofels Limited (the Holding Company) has charged service ingomie amounting to INR £7.96 (31 March 2023 - INR 45,52} fw core busimess advisary,

procurenient, sourcing of funds, suarantec commission, and other suppart services.

Going Congern
The Company has incurred a nzt loss of INR 102 08 durng the year ended 3! March 2074 wid as of that date, the Company’s current Eabilities has exceeded 1ts current assets by INR
301.98. The current liabilities inctude contractual cash outflows of INR 363,13 (excluding future contractual interest payments) due within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Based on future business projections, the Company expects growth in uts operations and improved operating perforiiance in coming perigds and alsa expects 4o earn enhanced cash
inflows from its operating activities. The Contpany belicves such anticipated intaenally generated [unds from operations in future along with its liquidity position as at 31 March 2024, #ts
avarlable tevolving undrawn oredit facehity as at 31 March 2024 will enable it to meet its uture known obligarions due it next year, in he oriinary conrse of business. lowever, if a
liquidity need were to anse, the Cempany has access (o requisite financial and operational support from SAMHI Hotels Limited (holdiag company?, which sheuld enable 1t to meet its
ongoing capttal, operating, and other hquidity requirements. In view of the above, the Management and Board of Directors of the Company have prepared these financial statements ca a

going concern basis,

Disclosures under Micro, Smalt and Medium Eaterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
As at

31 March 2623

As at
31 March 2024

Dues to micro, small and medium suppliers
The amounis remaining unpad to any supplier as at the end of the year:

Principal amount 1 82 7.7

[nteTest thereon - 0.id
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Cnterprises
Developnent Act, 2006 (MSMED acr, 2008} " -
The ameunt of payments made to Micro and Small Supplizrs beyond the appointed day during each . .
accounting year 790 28.15
The amount of mierest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been
pard bul beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest spacified under a1 0.0%
MSMLED Act 2006

342 215

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of sach accaunting vear

The ampunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untl such
date when the interest dues as above wre actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of } .
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 ofthe MSMED Act 2006

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which quahify under the defintion of micro and small enerprises, as defined

under hMicro, Smail and Medium Cnterprises Nevelopment Act, 2006 (MSMED) Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payahle to such enterprises as st 31 Marcl 2024

aref 31 March 2023 has been made m the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company

Lease disclosures

Leased asset includes hotel land and building acquired by the Company for a long teum period.

The Company has discounted lease paymenls using the incremental borrowing rate as ar 1 April 2019 of 10.00% for measuring the feasc lability. On 1 February 2024, the terms of the
eriginal lease agreement were modified and a revised liabitity was recognised at an incremental berrowing rate of 11.50%,

The foillowing table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash lows for iease liabilitics:

Particulars As at 31 Mareh 2034 As at 31 March 2023 —|
0-1 year 26 11 37.47
1-2 years 2611 27.31
2-5 years %341 #5.1n
Maorg than § years 518.60 574 O
Total Lease payments 654.23 T14.84

The reconciliation of lcase Habilities is as follows

Particulars Forthe year ended 31 | For the year ended 31 March
March 2024 023
Balance as at beginning of year 27768 27384
Amounts recogmised n statement of profit and loss as interest expense 2757 2745
Rehate on renr - {198}
Adjustment on modification {44 35) -
Payment of lease liabilities (2367 (2160
Batance as at cod of year 23703 277.68
Non current lease hablities 210.92 25021
2611 2747

Current ease leabilities

New standards and interpretations, not yer adopted

Winistry of corporate allairs (© MCA™ noafies new standard or amendments to the eustmg slandards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 1f.qned frome time 1

tine, For the vear endcd 3 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments te the existing standards applicable (o (he Company

N,
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Arzon Harels Private Limited
CIN - USSTHRDL2MMTPTC 61614

Notes to the financiai statergencs For the year ended 31 March 2024

A enanaes in Rupees mitfions, ooy othernive séoed)

46 Exceptional items

Particulars

Fairfield by Marrioit, Cheanai QMR

Caspiz Dellx

Tuotal

Far the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2023

[Gain) on disposal of the CGTE an slump sale hasis (refer
note 4)

(22.75}

(229.75)

{252.50)

47 Discontnued Qperations

During the current year, the Compary entered into an business wansfer agreement {"BTA"™) with Greenpark Flotels and Resorts Limited (“Greenpark™ for sale of its business at Fairfield by Manion.
Chenna OMR (including assers, comeacts, employees, hotel buildmg and liabitities), as 2 going coneemn on a slump sale basis as per the terms and conditions set forth in BTA. The conveyance deed
was execwied on 13 January 2023, Further, the Company has also tramsferred a cash penerating unit (Caspia Delhi) under slump sale to Holding Company as per the terms and conditions st forth in

BIA dared 28 March 2023,

Accordmgly. the operation of the said business's has been disclosed as discontinued operation in accordance with lad AS 103 "Noen-Current Assets Held for Safe and Discontinuzd Operations™.

Statement of Profit & Eoss of discuntinued operations

Fairficld by Marviort, Chennai OMR Caspia Delhi Tatak
Particulars Far the vear ended For ihe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2013 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 79,79 119,19 135,95
Crther income 4.25 008 .33
Tatal income 84,04 119.27 203.31
Expenses
Cost of matenals consutmed 5.34 14.35 F3.69
Emploves benefits expense 14.05 37 4522
Other expensas 45 00 6762 11361
Total expense 65.35 10014 174.52
Profit/{loss) before finance case, depreciation, [8.66 10.13 28,79
amortsatian and 1ax
Finance costs 50.06 .07 50.03
Depreciation and pmorisation expenss - 1109 11409
Loss before tax and exceptional items from continuing {3E.40) (1.03) (32.43)
operatinns
Lixceptional iterns - {(Gain)'Loss (22.75) {229.75) (252,50
Profit/{Lass} before tax from discontinued operadons (8.65) 228.72 1207
Net cashflows incurred Fram disconfinued operations iy as follows
Fairfield by Marriott, Chennai OMR { aspia Delhi Totat
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Cash Plow {used m) from Operating activities {3429} 14.50 {15.BO)
Cash Aow from (used in} [ovesting activitees 75.52 [20.63) 34 89
Cash flow {used in) Financing activities {16.46) - {1646}
EarningsiLoss) [rom discontinued operations
Fairfield by Marriott, Chennai OMR Caspia Delhi Total
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Basic EamingsiLoss) per share (1.1 29.42 28,32
Diluted Earmings/{ Loss) per sharg {1.10) 2942 28,32

P




Araon Hotels Private Limited
CIN - L55101DL2007PTC161 614

MNotes to the financial stateiments for the vear ended 31 March 2024

CAR artinenes i Mrenees oniliers weless aifemse
48 List of imtmevable properties rot held in th

02

As at 31 Mare

sientedly

e name of the Cnmpany

Relevant line item in the Balance Sheet

Descriptinn of property

Gross carrying valug
EINR mellizn}

Whether title deed holder is a |
promoter, divector o reliive
af prometec'director gr
employee of promoler/divectar

Property held since which

Eeld in the name of date

Reasin Tor mot being held in the
nane of the company

Wiiteficld. Bengaiucu, Karnalaka
FAMHI4%

Propens. plant and cquipment - Freshold Survey Mo 1371A02AS1 117 and parts of AL Ne Promuer Inz Indiz Privaw | Ociober 24068 The saie deed 5 m the pame: of Promicr
Land Supvey Yo 131 A2A, Mundhwa - Limited an India Pricate  Lamitedersiwhile
Kharaoi Rd, Thite Nagar. Kharad.. mame of the Company  which was
Punec. Mahasastina $ELC14 changed  t0 Aspon Hotols  Privaty]
Liraiteg,

Propesty. plant and sguipmzut - Fisdusld Surves Mo ! L Plol B C&E Anjuss 126,061 N Promier [nm Inda Provane | Juls 2611 Fresh ccmnm&: o "jnmrpcruuon
Land -- ) .Sim\-,]dd-o (j‘o;g .-Jusiuu B L‘im‘tcd s censiquunt to chanpe of nas dated
. hhid - September A 2007 was msucd b the
Registriar  of  Companics. National

Capital Teertor of Delhi
Raght of L'se (Puilding) 3-A1 Kundanabhalll Mz.o Read 12373 Mo Truc Vakuo Hetels India | September 2008 The Tz25c docd 13 iy The mame of Trug|
¥lahadvpara. opposits Jth Campus. (Provivns Year . 158 18y Prvare Lenited Yaluc Hatels India Privae]

{NZOIPCTALON CONSCqUEh’ 1 chunee of)

Lamrgd,cestnlule game of Promae Fin
[zdia Privaje Limied which was lates

chanped 0 Asgon llotels  Provatol
Limutud.
Frash  conificatz of  incomaratian

consecuent t change of nawe from
Truc  Yahw Indig  Private]
Limned 0 Promicr B ledia Povate
Luterd was issued on Sepiember 11!

Tlolels

208 by the Duputy Remesien ol
Compaeics. Nationz: Capdal lermery
of Dolhe and Han ana

‘Later.  another  cemficais of]

e aled Seplember 6. 2007 was
tssiad by the Romisteo ol Comnpames |
Delhi with nospeel 1o tac chaoge f]
name frome Premizr g Inda Panea
Limeted e Argon [Taels  Prisal
Limited.

As per our report of mien dae attached

Four BR R & Co. LLP
Charrerad Azeanniant,

ICA] Firm Regstration Mo W 24RW W | 01022

ahw Naﬂafs,

Rakul Nayar
Puartrer
Membership Mo SUR6E

Pluce. Guragram
Dhate, 3% May 211249

Foe and o eehall of Brars of Discriors
Argon Hotels Private Lihited

firgptoe
DI, 842 | 3081

Placc: Gurugram
Taate 39 May 2024
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